
Council Meeting Agenda – October 19, 2023 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL AND IN-PERSON 

The Council may entertain a motion in open session to enter into a closed session, in 
accordance with Section 3-305(b) of the Open Meetings Act (Maryland Code, General 
Provisions Article). 

• Call to Order: Alexander
• Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents' Comments: TBD
• Building Permit Public Hearing Regarding Bio-Retention Planter Boxes at 3417 

and 3419 Cummings Lane (Page 2)
• Manager's Report: Silliman (Page 9)
• Approve September 21 Meeting Minutes: Alexander (Page 31)
• Approve October 5 Meeting Minutes: Alexander (Page 33)
• Discussion of a forthcoming annual community survey and the creation of an 

administrative calendar
• Treasurer's Report: Blander (Page 37)
• Committee and Task Force Reports
• Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents' Comments: TBD
• The Council May Entertain a Motion to go into Closed Session
• Adjournment: Alexander

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88331175094?pwd=OFNvZkFzbnA4c0ovdWI4KzA1Q2JjU
T09 

Meeting ID: 883 3117 5094 
Passcode: 525784 One tap mobile: (301) 715-8592 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88331175094?pwd=OFNvZkFzbnA4c0ovdWI4KzA1Q2JjUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88331175094?pwd=OFNvZkFzbnA4c0ovdWI4KzA1Q2JjUT09


{00572114;1 }

Selzer Gurvitch Rabin Wertheimer & Polott, P.C. 
4416 East West Highway • Fourth Floor • Bethesda, MD 20814-4568 Phone: 

(301) 986-9600 • Fax: (301) 986-1301 • Toll Free: (888) 986-9600

www.selzergurvitch.com 

Matthew M. Gordon, Esquire 
mgordon@sgrwlaw.com 

Direct Dial: 301-634-3150 
September 30, 2023 

Via Email ron@boltlegal.com  
Village of Martin’s Additions 
c/o Ron Bolt 
Bolt Legal 
10410 Kensington Parkway, Suite 222 
Kensington, MD 20895 

RE: Request to Lift Stop Work dated July 26, 2023 regarding ESD Planter Boxes at 3417 and 
3419 Cummings Lane, Chevy Chase, MD 20815 (the “Property”) 

Dear Ron: 

On behalf of my client 3419 Cummings Lane LLC (the “Permittee”), please accept this letter as 
our request to lift the stop work order issued by the Village of Martin’s Addition (“VMA”) on 
July 26, 2023. In order to ensure that the Permittee does not incur additional costs and delays that 
are prejudicial, we respectfully request that VMA review and act on this request promptly as 
time is of the essence. As described in greater detail below, the Environmental Site Design 
(“ESD”) planter boxes proposed for the Property fully comply with Montgomery County 
Department of Permitting Services ("DPS”) stormwater management standards and do not 
violate Section 7-402(e) of the VMA Code.  

Section 19-21 of the Montgomery County Code defines environmental site design as “[u]sing 
small-scale stormwater management practices, nonstructural techniques, and better site planning 
to mimic natural hydrologic runoff characteristics and minimize the impact of development on 
water resources,” and the Maryland Department of Environment’s (“MDE”) Stormwater Design 
Manual specifically calls for the use of micro-bioretention (i.e., planter boxes) to capture and 
treat runoff from discrete impervious areas by passing it through a filter bed mixture of sand, 
soil, and organic matter. See Chapter 5, MDE’s Stormwater Design Manual. An illustrative 
example of the ESD planter boxes proposed at the Property, when complete following a growing 
season, is provided below for context: 

2

mailto:mgordon@sgrwlaw.com
mailto:ron@boltlegal.com


September 30, 2023 
Request to lift stop work order dated July 26, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 

{00572114;1 }

As illustrated on the revised Sediment Control permit (#28896) plans that were approved by DPS 
on September 29, 2023, the ESD planter boxes will be disconnected from the house 
foundation at the Property. These ESD planter boxes are designed, sized and located in a 
manner that is necessary to satisfy State and County stormwater management requirements 
administered by DPS. While VMA lacks the authority to regulate stormwater management 
facilities1, a plain reading of Sections 7-101(3) and 7-402(e) of the VMA Code overwhelmingly 
support a finding that the placement of these ESD facilities is fully compliant with VMA’s 
residential building code standards because they will not project from the principal dwelling 
unit and are not appurtenances as defined by the VMA Code. 

Section 7-402(e) states that “[e]xcept as otherwise set forth in this Chapter, no side wall or side 
projection of any main building shall be located closer to any side lot line than the following 
setbacks.” (emphasis provided). While the ESD planter boxes were originally connected to the 
main building being constructed at the Property, the ESD facilities will be disconnected from the 

1 We note that the term storm water is only used two (2) times in the entire VMA Code. Moreover, the 
VMA Code does not regulate the location or placement of storm water management facilities (ESD 
facilities or otherwise) under Chapter 7 at all.  

3



September 30, 2023 
Request to lift stop work order dated July 26, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 

{00572114;1 }

principal dwellings being constructed (as illustrated on the revised Sediment Control permit) 
such that they no longer constitute a side wall or side projection of any main building. 
Significantly, these ESD planter boxes do not meet the definition of a building or main building 
under Sections 7-101(3) and (34), which are copied below for ease of reference: 

(3) “Building” means a structure on a lot which has one or more stories and a roof and is
designed primarily for the shelter, support or enclosure of persons or property of any kind.
“Building” includes above-grade projections and appurtenances, including, but not limited to,
porches, decks, breezeways, steps, stoops, exterior stairways, bay windows, oriel entrances,
balconies, vestibules, air conditioners, heat pumps, and generators. “Building” excludes
projections and appurtenances that are constructed at or below grade, such as a stairwell or patio.

(34) “Main Building” means a building in which is conducted the principal use of the property
on which it is situated. Any dwelling shall be deemed to be a main building on the lot on which it
is located.

The ESD planter boxes, which will be disconnected from the main building on the Property, 
simply do not constitute a building as defined by the VMA Code. As illustrated in the precedent 
image on the prior page, the ESD planter boxes resemble landscape improvements and function 
for the sole purpose of treating stormwater management as required by State and County law. 
These ESD planter boxes are not projections of a main building and cannot be occupied or 
otherwise characterized in a manner that is similar to the list of appurtenances defined by Section 
7-101(3) of the VMA Code (“porches, decks, breezeways, steps, stoops, exterior stairways, bay
windows, oriel entrances, balconies, vestibules, air conditioners, heat pumps, and generators”).
The ESD planter boxes are unlike any of these examples of appurtenances. The ESD planter
boxes further and advance the purpose and application of the VMA residential building standards
by minimizing “the flow of storm water from lots by encouraging the maintenance of open
spaces and the reduction of impervious surfaces.” See Section 7-401(c) of the VMA Code. To
this end, a determination that these ESD planter boxes are in violation of Section 7-402(e) is not
only inconsistent with a plain reading of the VMA Code, but inconsistent with the purpose of the
VMA Code.

Since the ESD planter boxes are: (i) designed, located, and sized as required by DPS; (ii) will not 
project from a main building; (iii) and do not constitute appurtenances under the VMA Code, we 
respectfully request that July 26, 2023 stop work order be rescinded and lifted 
immediately. Timely resolution of this issue is critical for the Permittee so please respond at 
your earliest opportunity to confirm that the stop work order will be lifted.  

4



September 30, 2023 
Request to lift stop work order dated July 26, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 

{00572114;1 }

Very truly yours, 
Selzer, Gurvitch, Rabin, Wertheimer & Polott, P.C. 

Matthew Gordon 

cc: Karen Kuchins 
Nick Jacobs 

  Michael Silliman, Village Manager 

5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6455E36E-B3B6-4D93-BBD6-1C6B2F7A0D55

Revision 1 approved for cast-in-place 
structural drawings 
Sherryl Mitchell 
09/29/2023

SEDIMENT-288896

09/29/23
Stamped By: Mark Etheridge

6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6455E36E-B3B6-4D93-BBD6-1C6B2F7A0D55

SEDIMENT-288896

09/29/23
Stamped By: Mark Etheridge

7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6455E36E-B3B6-4D93-BBD6-1C6B2F7A0D55

SEDIMENT-288896

09/29/23
Stamped By: Mark Etheridge

8



From: Michael Silliman, Village Manager 
To: Village Council  
Subject: Village Manager’s Report   
Date: 10-19-23 

Administration: 
- Over the last month I have attended a professional development conference and met

with the neighboring municipalities’ managers several times. Section 3 and Chevy Chase
View have looked to us as a model in renting their own office spaces and hiring
additional staff members. I have learned a lot and hope to implement several things
going forward. I will mention two items now:

(1) An annual fiscal year Village-wide report.
(2) An annual Council goal setting/strategic planning session.

- The audit is underway. We are expecting an update from the auditor and a list of
additional items they need.

- Status update on the three Requests for Proposals (RFPs) for
(1) Fall leaf vacuuming – We received one bid from Rolling Acres. The pricing is
the same as last year, so I recommend we finalize this contract tomorrow.
(2) Snow plowing – We received proposals from three interested providers. I will
put together a recommendation by next month’s Council meeting.
(3) Free composting (for every household in the Village that wants it) – We
received bids from Compost Crew and Veteran Compost for consideration.

Maintenance: 
- Curb and driveway apron repairs are happening today and tomorrow at 7223 Delfield,

the entrance to the Brookville Market parking lot, and at 3521 Cummings.

Special Projects: 
- Widening the dead-end of Quincy Street is underway. Let me confirm for everyone that

the sidewalk will be replaced in the same location but lowered to curb height. The two
parking spaces on the south side of the street will be maintained and an additional 3
and a half feet of clearance will be provided for emergency vehicles to be able to pass.

- Paula Goldberg, Ed Mulheron, and I met to inspect and finalize the list of trees to plant
this fall. The tree order has been placed.

- Brookville Rd. Sidewalk: Traffic Engineer, Joe Cutro, conducted a traffic study and
provided a recommendation to add a crosswalk at Bradley Lane across Brookville Road.
Surveyor, Mike Witmer, has had some issues with the location data of the right of way
monuments. He was back on-site last week gathering more data and should have a final
report to me by next week.

Buildings: 
- I have included the Building Administrator, Doug Lohmeyer’s, report in the meeting

packet.

9



- We have received and are reviewing a permit application and variance request for 3412
Taylor. We will schedule a public hearing shortly.

- The Developer of 151 Quincy has signed a Village Right-of-Way Agreement and applied
for a county permit to connect the sump pump, currently discharging into the front yard
to the County storm drain under Quincy Street. Thanks to the Council for all their
attention and work related to this matter.

- We have issued a deck permit to 7219 Delfield.
- We are preparing to issue a permit for a small addition to 6709 Melville.

10



19301 New Hampshire Ave.  • Brinklow, MD 20862 • 301-570-7963

Initial: _______ 

September 12, 2023

Villages of Martins Additions 
7013-B Brookeville Road 
Chevy Chase, MD  20815 

Phone: 301-656-4112 
Email: manager@martinsadditions.org 

2023-2024 Leaf Cleanup, Street and Storm Drain Cleaning Proposal 

Dear Sirs, 

Thank you for the opportunity to present you (“Owner”) with this proposal for Martins Additions. 
Rolling Acres Landscaping proposes to furnish all labor, materials and equipment to complete the 
following Project (hereinafter “Project”): 

SCOPE OF WORK: LEAF, STREET & STORM DRAIN CLEANING 

Option A:   Leaf Cleanup, Street Cleaning and Storm Drain Cleaning throughout Villages of Martins 
Additions.   

• Gather leaves throughout Villages of Martins Additions.
• The leaves will be transported to county site for dumping.
• Montgomery County will invoice Martins Addition’s for dump fees
• All debris will be transported to county site for dumping.
• 4 visits throughout the year.
• 2 Visits in November
• 2 visits in December

Total investment for Leaf, Street and Storm Drain Cleaning $15,400.00 per time 
If this line item is agreeable; please initial: ________ 

11



19301 New Hampshire Ave.  • Brinklow, MD 20862 • 301-570-7963

Initial: _______ 

Option B: Option A: PORTAL TO PORTAL:  Leaf cleanup, Street Cleaning and Storm Drain Cleaning 
throughout Villages of Martins Additions.   

• Gather leaves throughout Villages of Martins Additions.
• The leaves will be transported to county site for dumping.
• Montgomery County will invoice Martins Addition’s for dump fees
• All debris will be transported to county site for dumping.
• 4 visits throughout the year.
• 2 Visits in November
• 2 visits in December

$57.00 per man hour   
If this line item is agreeable; please initial: ________ 

We can now email most correspondence and accept VISA and MasterCard to save paper and stamps! 
Send us an email to let us know what works best for you! 

METHOD OF COMPENSATION: A 50% deposit of the Total Investment for Landscape (“Contract Price”) 
will be due prior to any Project being scheduled to begin. 25% of the Contract Price will be due upon 
start of Project and the balance will be due upon completion of the Project. Delinquent accounts shall 
be subject to a service charge of two percent (2%) per month on any unpaid balance and such default 
shall automatically void any and all credits, guarantees and warranties. Owner agrees to pay all 
expenses associated with any collection proceedings, including Rolling Acres Landscaping’s reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs. 

NOTE: Permits are not included in the Scope of Work unless expressly stated otherwise. In the event 
that the Owner expressly requests that Rolling Acres Landscaping obtain permits, Rolling Acres 
Landscaping will use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain any permits required by Local, State 
or other Government agencies on behalf of the Owner, but cannot guarantee or otherwise certify 
that any such permits or approvals shall be obtained. The Owner agrees to pay all fees and related 
costs on a Time & Materials (T&M) basis or Contract Price to obtain permits or government approvals, 
irrespective of whether such permits or approvals are actually obtained. 
NOTE: Please refer to the “CONCEALED CONDITIONS” clause in the Terms & Conditions portion of this 
contract. 
NOTE: Prices are subject to change if contract is not accepted within 30 days. 
NOTE: The Terms & Conditions pages attached are part of this Contract. 
NOTE: Grading and soil are not included in Contract except where noted in the Scope of Work. 
NOTE: All pricing subject to all portions of Contract being accepted in conjunction with one another 
and not individually. 
NOTE: Rolling Acres Landscaping reserves the right to add a daily fuel surcharge to this Contract. 

12



19301 New Hampshire Ave.  • Brinklow, MD 20862 • 301-570-7963

Initial: _______ 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT: The above Scope of Work and Method of Compensation in the 
Landscaping Proposal and the Terms & Conditions below (and incorporated herein) constitute the 
entire Contract and agreement between Rolling Acres Landscaping and the Owner. This Contract shall 
be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors and assigns and shall be interpreted according to 
the laws of the State of Maryland. Terms of this Contract may not be modified orally. The Owner hereby 
expressly disclaims any other agreement between the parties and knowingly and intentionally waives, 
and shall not rely on, any prior or subsequent oral promise, agreement, statement or representation by 
any agent, owner, representative or employee of Rolling Acres Landscaping, Inc. contrary to the terms 
of this Contract. This Contract may only be altered, modified or amended in writing signed by the 
Owner and a duly authorized representative of Rolling Acres Landscaping. The parties hereby agree to 
all terms and conditions in the Proposal and Terms & Conditions as reflected by their signatures below. 
The parties understand and agree that this Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties and no other agreement, oral or written; pertaining to the Scope of Work to be performed 
under this Contract exists between the parties. 

Agreed To By: _________________________________________ Date: __________________ 
   Owner 

*For your convenience, we accept VISA and MasterCard.

**Please Note: Credit card payments will only be accepted within 15 days of invoice date. ** 
Please charge my: MasterCard    VISA 

Card #:_____________________________________ Expiration Date: ____________________ 

Signature for Authorization: ______________________________________________________ 

Thank you for your business! 

13



19301 New Hampshire Ave.  • Brinklow, MD 20862 • 301-570-7963

Initial: _______ 

ROLLING ACRES LANDSCAPING, INC. 

TERMS & CONDITIONS APPLYING TO THIS CONTRACT 

WARRANTY:  Rolling Acres Landscaping warrants new plant material for two (2) years, provided that the 
Owner provides reasonable care and maintenance (i.e., watering, trimming and any other reasonable 
maintenance) and any plant replaced or transplanted has no further warranty. Rolling Acres Landscaping 
strongly recommends an IPM program for a minimum of two (2) years. Rolling Acres Landscaping can 
provide this service at an additional cost. Transplanted plant material has no warranty. Any plant 
material installed at “No Charge” has no warranty or guarantee. Rolling Acres Landscaping is not 
responsible for losses due to drought, severe storms, severe winters or any other factors beyond our 
control (i.e., deer browsing or insect infestation). Plants in planters have no warranty.  Groundcovers and 
perennials have no warranty. Rolling Acres Landscaping will provide watering during installation until 
completion. Rolling Acres Landscaping will do the initial watering at the time of planting. Owner is to 
provide water source and water. Any further watering necessary to keep the plant material in healthy 
condition will be the responsibility of the Owner following completion of the Project. Rolling Acres 
Landscaping will not be responsible for any ground settlement. Rolling Acres Landscaping is not 
responsible for existing irrigation systems, dog fencing, lighting, or systems installed by others contracted 
directly through the Owner. Under no circumstances, plant material which is harmed or succumbs to 
over- or under-watering will not be warranted or guaranteed. Some plants which may be covered under 
this Warranty may be irreplaceable due to the nature of specimen quality and/or mature specimens’ 
individual characteristics. In this instance, it is Rolling Acres Landscaping’s policy to credit one third (1/3) 
of the plant amount cost for said plant material toward future contract work.  It is understood and agreed 
that payment for all work will be paid in full within fifteen (15) days following the date of billing or the 
foregoing Warranty or any credit toward design fee will be voided. Rolling Acres Landscaping makes no 
other warranties, express or implied, to Owner. Owner further agrees that no other express warranty or 
other written or verbal presentation has been made in relation to this transaction or otherwise forms any 
basis for the bargain between the parties, including any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a 
particular purpose. 

DEFAULT: In the event that Owner fails to make payments or otherwise breaches or materially defaults 
upon the Owner obligations in this Contract, title to all materials supplied by Rolling Acres Landscaping 
shall be and remain the sole property of Rolling Acres Landscaping unless and until payment has been 
received pursuant to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract. 

CANCELLATION: In the event that the Owner (or Rolling Acres Landscaping, if expressly requested and 
agreed to in the Scope of Work above) is unable to obtain any necessary permits or approvals, Rolling 
Acres Landscaping may elect to cancel this Contract upon five (5) business day’s written notice to Owner. 
In the event of cancellation, Rolling Acres Landscaping’s liability, if any, for such cancellation shall be 
limited to the return of any deposited funds less any actual costs incurred by Rolling Acres Landscaping 
for any equipment, materials or labor actually supplied on a Time and Materials basis. 

14



19301 New Hampshire Ave.  • Brinklow, MD 20862 • 301-570-7963

Initial: _______ 

PLANT MATERIAL CHANGES AND CHANGE ORDERS:  Changes in the Scope of Work, Contract Price, 
completion date, types and amount of plant material, or other matters may be accomplished after 
execution of the Contract without invalidating the Contract, by a written Change Order. The Change Order 
shall be in writing, signed by both Owner and a duly authorized representative of Rolling Acres 
Landscaping, and shall specify the change in the work, amount of any adjustment in the Contract Price, 
changes in plant material, and the extent of any adjustment as to the completion date. All charges will be 
billed at a Time & Materials (T&M) rate or Contract Price. No verbal or other amendments to the Contract 
will be effective unless the parties agree and execute a Change Order in writing as described herein. 

DELAYS: Any Project and all orders may be subject to delays on the part of Rolling Acres Landscaping, due 
to inclement weather, labor difficulties, fires, floods, transportation issues, acts of God, government 
regulation, failure of suppliers’, orders of civil or military authorities, national emergencies, other vendor 
or subcontractor delays, or any other causes beyond the reasonable control of Rolling Acres Landscaping. 
Rolling Acres Landscaping shall not be responsible or liable for any damages incurred or arising from any 
delays or circumstances beyond the reasonable control of Rolling Acres Landscaping. 

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES: Rolling Acres Landscaping assumes the responsibility to contact Miss Utility 
prior to any digging, excavation, or other work involving the removal or addition of dirt, soil or other 
material. Utilities shall be requested to be marked prior to the projected start date. Markings are 
requested as paint and flags. Miss Utility shall be responsible for any markings and any damage, costs or 
expenses caused by any error or omission marking a utility. A minimum of seven (7) days notice is required 
by Miss Utility to have utilities marked. Private utilities which cannot be marked by Miss Utility (i.e., dog 
fence, irrigation lines, outdoor lighting) fall under the CONCEALED CONDITIONS clause below. 

CONCEALED CONDITIONS:  If conditions are encountered at a site which are (1) subsurface or otherwise 
concealed physical conditions of an unusual nature, and such conditions differ materially from those 
indicated by the Contract documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, and such 
conditions differ materially from those indicated in the Contract documents and cause an increase in 
Rolling Acres Landscaping’s costs or time required for performance of any part of the Scope of Work, the 
parties to the Contract shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the Contract Price, an extension to 
the Completion Date, or both, by Change Order. 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS: Rolling Acres Landscaping will set trees/plants for approval by Owner or Landscape 
Architect on behalf of Owner. Any tree or plant that is moved after the initial placement will be billed on 
a Time & Materials (T&M) or Contract Price for all equipment, materials, and labor above original Contract 
Price. If Owner wants to plant specimen plants anywhere on site other than the original site, all work will 
be done on a T&M or Contract Price basis for all equipment, materials, and labor above original Contract 
Price. If Owner does not want plant material after the Contract has been signed, there will be a fifty 
percent (50%) credit of plant material cost given toward future work that has not been estimated or 
contracted for. Delivery of plant material will be billed at $________ for a small truck and $________ for 
a large truck above the contracted amount. Special equipment delivery cost: $________ each way for 
pickup and delivery of $________ round trip. Guarantee on specimen plant material will be a credit of 
one third (1/3) of the plant material cost credited toward future work that has not been estimated or 
contracted for. 

15



19301 New Hampshire Ave.  • Brinklow, MD 20862 • 301-570-7963

Initial: _______ 

COMPLAINTS:  Any complaints or claims to Rolling Acres Landscaping must be made, in writing, within 
five (5) days after the completion of any work. As a condition precedent to the filing of any legal action, 
the parties agree to provide written notice of any such complaint or claim within five (5) business days 
and provide the opposing party a reasonable time to cure any alleged defect, complaint or claim. Any 
Project which is cancelled after an agreement to start the work will be billed to the Owner on a Time & 
Materials (T&M) basis for all materials and labor accumulated up to the date of cancellation. In any 
dispute or controversy concerning the performance of or arising out of this Contract, each party agrees 
to submit such dispute or controversy to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the Circuit Court of 
Maryland for Montgomery County. In the event that such dispute or controversy does not reach the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the circuit court, each party agrees to submit any dispute or controversy 
concerning the performance of or arising out of this Contract to the District Court of Maryland for 
Montgomery County. 

RIGHT OF READY ACCESS:  The Owner accepts the responsibility for obtaining written permission for the 
use of adjoining properties for access to work areas. Rolling Acres Landscaping reserves the right to post 
a Rolling Acres Landscaping sign from acceptance of the design proposal through 60 days post completion 
of the job. 

NON-SOLICITATION OF CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR’S EMPLOYEES:  During and for two (2) years 
after the expiration of the term of this Contract, Owner shall neither solicit for employment nor employ 
any employee of Rolling Acres Landscaping or its subcontractors, without the prior written consent of 
Rolling Acres Landscaping or its subcontractor. 

ASSIGNMENT:  This Contract or portions hereof, shall be assignable by Rolling Acres Landscaping without 
the written consent of the other party, provided that no assignment shall be effective until written notice 
is provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

Permission is hereby granted for photographs and/or videos to be taken of the work performed by Rolling 
Acres Landscaping, and Rolling Acres Landscaping has the right to utilize such photographs and videos in 
its brochures, videos, slide shows, web site, and other promotional materials. 

Work site to be rough graded +/- 1/4” from final grade. The site will be cleared of all debris (construction, 
miscellaneous, etc.). 

NOTICE:  Any written notice or Communication required hereunder shall be delivered by hand, by Federal 
Express or similar overnight courier service or sent by first class mail, certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested, to any party hereto at its respective address set forth in the beginning of the Contract. 

Signed: ___________________________________________ Date: __________________________ 

16



Michael Silliman

Village Manager

Village of Martin's Additions

7013 Brookville Road, Suite B (Second Floor)

Chevy Chase, MD 20815-3263

Dear Manager Silliman,

Compost Crew, Inc., A Benefit Corporation (hereafter referred to as “Compost Crew”) welcomes the

opportunity to respond to your request for proposals for “Food Waste Composting Services Village of

Martin’s Additions”.

Compost Crew is based in Montgomery County and is uniquely qualified to assist Village of Martin’s

Additions in providing residential food scrap collection services. Our company has been working with

neighboring communities to divert their food scraps for composting for years and we welcome the

opportunity to expand Village of Martin’s Additions discounted community program into a municipal

program subsidized by the Village.

Compost Crew has provided food scrap collections services for residential customers for twelve years.

Our company currently collects food scraps from over 14,000 area homes each week.

Compost Crew offers customers a choice of 7-gallon and 12-gallon bins for curbside collection. The bins

are recommended for their capacity, mobility, and ease of cleaning. The bins are durable plastic and

come with a latching lid that can be operated with one hand while effectively deterring unwanted

wildlife.

The bins will be lined with BPI certified compostable liners. The liners aid in maintaining the cleanliness

of the bins. Convenience and cleanliness makes food waste diversion more accessible for a larger percent

of the population.

Compost Crew will perform curbside collection in the front of participating Village homes on a

designated day each week. Currently residents of the Village who subscribe to our service receive

collection on Wednesdays. Collection is performed by Compost Crew drivers that operate a fleet of 25

company owned vehicles. Our residential collection is done with Ford F-350 pickup trucks with

customized water-tight beds for containing, transporting and tipping food waste for recycling into

compost.These smaller vehicles are more efficient and quieter than traditional waste collection vehicles.

The customized beds prevent spillage.

Compost Crew educates participants about the benefits of food waste diversion with regular blog posts

on our website. These posts are promoted through social media. We address questions by regularly

updating our FAQ page. To review these pages please visit https://compostcrew.com/blog/ and

https://compostcrew.com/faq/.

17

https://compostcrew.com/blog/
https://compostcrew.com/faq/


Compost Crew has a staff of over 60 people. Operations, route supervisors, dispatchers and of course

drivers will all aid in the service of participating Village homes each week. However, there are two main

project managers.

Alan Van Order is the Director of Business Development and focuses exclusively on municipal partners.

Alan will be responsible for contracting and compliance with the terms of the agreement with the Village

of Martin’s Additions. Alan has managed customer relationships for over 20 years and has been with

Compost Crew for over two years.

Jacquie Anderson is our Municipal Account Manager and manages the customer service for our

municipal partnerships. Jacquie will be responsible for internal coordination of collections, customer

service and communication and invoices. Jacquie also has years of experience in direct marketing and

customer service. Jacquie has been with Compost Crew for over four years.

Compost Crew is willing to extend our floor rate of $19.00 per month for weekly collection of 7-gallon

bins. The fee for homes that choose the larger, 12-gallon bin is $26.00 per month. The additional $7.00

can be passed along to the residents who choose more capacity or billed to the Village.

There is a bin purchase and delivery fee for new customers. This is a one-time fee. The fee is $20.00 for

7-gallon bins and $35.00 for 12-gallon bins. Again, this fee can be paid by the Village or passed along to

the resident. Many municipalities choose to make this one-time payment the responsibility of the

resident. A small financial responsibility indicates buy-in by the resident and results in higher weekly

participation and compliance with acceptable items.

Sign up for new residents takes place via the Compost Crew website. Once signed up, a

password-protected customer account for the Compost Crew portal will be created. Compost Crew

manages all customer communications including weekly reminders of collection and collection status

reports. These emails are optional for each subscriber.

To illustrate the circularity of food waste diversion, Compost Crew can offer compost back to

participating residents once a year in the Spring. The current options include one bag of one and a half

cubic feet delivered to the resident, two bags collected from seasonal locations or three cubic feet of

bulk compost at distribution sites. Subscribers opt-in to receive compost when they register and select

the delivery method each year.

Compost Crew operates over a dozen municipal programs. Larger programs include DC, Alexandria and

Montgomery County. References of similar size to the Village include the City of College Park and the

Town of Garrett Park.

18



The City of College Park started a fully subsidized curbside program in November of 2022. The program

has grown to 384 subscribers. Robert Marsili is the Director of Public Works for the City and Compost

Crew’s main contact. Robert can be reached at rmarsili@collegeparkmd.gov and (240) 623.6359.

The Town of Garrett Park started a fully subsidized curbside program in the early spring of 2023. The

program has 70 participants. Kayla Buker is the Assistant Town Manager and Compost Crew’s main

contact. Kayla can be reached at kayla.buker@garrettparkmd.gov and (301) 933-7488.

Compost Crew acknowledges that should we be the successful proposer, we are required to execute

affidavits of non-collusion, non-conviction, and non-suspension/disbarment and provide a written

contract in a form approved by the Village. We must also be qualified and registered to do business in

Maryland, and must be an equal opportunity employer.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit a proposal for the expansion of food waste diversion in the

Village of Martin’s Additions. If you have any questions about this proposal, please feel free to reach out

to me, Alan Van Order, by emailing alan@compostcrew.com or by calling (202) 468-8021. I hope we have

the opportunity to continue to work with you. Regards, Alan

Alan Van Order

Director of Business Development

Compost Crew

19

mailto:alan@compostcrew.com


20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



TO:  The Council at the Village of Martin’s Additions 

FROM:              Doug Lohmeyer  

DATE OF MEMO:          Oct. 16, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Building Administrator’s Report 

3506 Bradley La. 

The County has closed their permit and the Village was ready to close theirs. However, the 
contractor has recently added a parking space in the front yard, next to the driveway. The staff 
has requested a revised Site Plan and a non-vegetative analysis. 

3508 Bradley La. 

The property owner has submitted a building permit application to add a two story addition at the 
rear of the ex. house. The Village issued the permits on Nov. 25, 2022. Work has begun. 

3417 Cummings La. 

The owner submitted an application to demolish the existing house and to construct a new home 
on Nov. 22, 2022. The property is two lots, 6 and 7, recorded in 1919. The resident information 
meeting was held on Tuesday, Mar. 14th. The MCDPS issued their permits and the Village permit 
was issued on May 30, 2023. The two SWM planter boxes are an issue. 

3419 Cummings La. 

The owner submitted an application to demolish the existing house and to construct a new home 
on Nov. 22, 2022. The property is two lots, 6 and 7, recorded in 1919. The resident information 
meeting was held on Tuesday, Mar. 14th. The MCDPS issued their permits and the Village issued 
their permits on May 11, 2023. The SWM planter box is an issue. The plans have been revised to 
modify the front porch roof. 

7219 Delfield St. 

The property owner has submitted an application to replace the existing deck at the rear of the 
house and to add an additional section of decking with stairs. The Village permit was issued on 
Oct.11, 2023. 

28



6709 Melville Pl. 

The property owner has submitted an application to enclose a portion of the existing screened 
porch at the left, rear of the house. The MCDPS issued their building permit on Sept. 29, 2023. 
The Village is in the process of issuing the building permit. 

203 Oxford St. 

The applicant has submitted an application to add a two story addition and a deck at the rear of 
the house. The Village issued the building permit on May 23, 2023. A residents information 
meeting was not required, since the proposed addition is under 500 S.F. The staff has reviewed 
the Wall Check and the setbacks complies with the approved Site Plan. 

151 Quincy St. 

The property owner submitted a building permit application to remove the ex. house and to 
construct a new house. The Village issued the permits on Nov. 23, 2022. The old house has been 
removed and the new house construction is underway. The MCDPS permit is still open. 

162 Quincy St. 

The new homeowner is making interior improvements to the existing house and has said the 
existing house footprint will not increase. The homeowner has built a 10 inch high retaining wall 
along the front of the property on Quincy, next to the public sidewalk. A Village right of way 
license agreement has been prepared and is pending signatures. 

3500 Raymond St. 

The property owner has applied for a Village permit to make several additions to the existing 
house. The Village issued their permits on Jan. 6, 2023. The work is ongoing. The Wall Check 
survey indicates the addition complies with the Village setbacks. The architect submitted a new 
roof study, which indicated the new roof is at the same elevation as the old roof. 

3504 Shepherd St. 

The homeowner plans to construct an addition at the rear of the ex. house. The Village issued 
their permits on Dec. 8, 2022. MCDPS has closed their building permit and the Village staff is in 
the process of closing the Village permit. 

29



3412 Taylor St. 

The homeowner has submitted plans to enclose and remove the existing below street garage and 
to remove and raise the driveway, so it will slope towards the street and away from the house. 
The staff met with the owners and their architect and discussed the proposed revisions and the 
process. The property owner submitted to MCDPS on August 26, 2023, but has not submitted to 
the Village. 

3502 Taylor St. 

The property owner submitted an application to construct a two story addition at the rear of the 
house and to make interior improvements. The Village permit was issued on May 24, 2023. 

3508 Taylor St. 

The property owner began construction of an addition at the rear of the house without obtaining 
County or Village permits. A Village “Stop Work Order” has been issued and construction has 
stopped. The property owner has not applied for a permit from MCDPS or the Village. 

3409 Thornapple St. 

The property owner has applied for a permit to add a deck at the rear of the house. That permit 
has been issued. They also propose to add an additional parking place in the front yard. The staff 
has requested a non-vegetative analysis for the proposed parking space. 

30



Council Meeting Minutes – September 21, 2023 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL AND IN-PERSON 

Council Members Present: Andrew Kauders; Susan Fattig; Arthur Alexander; Katie Howard 

Other Attendees: Village Manager: Michael Silliman; Village Attorney Ron Bolt; Marty Langelan; 
Keith Allen; Lorie Mitchell; Rajul Pandya-Lorch; John Sharrow; Sally Maran; Hiromi Maruyama; 
Doug Grob; Peter Kahn; Susan Kahn.  

7:30 PM Call to Order: Alexander 

Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents’ Comments 

Peter Kahn commented on the ethics related agenda item. 

Susan Kahn commented on the Charter Amendment to clarify a qualified voter and the 
definition of “permanent abode.” Susan also commented on the ethics agenda item for this 
meeting. 

Marty Langelan also commented that there is no reason to revisit the ethics ordinance. Marty 
also commented on the Village elections and said that this year’s committee is looking forward 
to getting started and plans to use the 2023 regulations as a baseline. 

Doug Grob commented on the development at 3417 and 3419 Cummings and asked if the plans 
will be shared prior to a future public hearing on the bio retention boxes. The answer was yes, 
the plans will be made available. Doug further asked for clarification related to the building lot 
coverage and the back decks. Ron Bolt provided an explanation. 

7:51 PM Manager’s Report: Silliman 
Village Manager Michael Silliman delivered his report. 

Keith Allen delivered a weather report. 

8:02 PM Approve August 17 Meeting Minutes 
Susan moved to approve the minutes. Arthur seconded. The minutes passed unanimously. 

Approve August 31 Meeting Minutes 
Arthur moved to approve the minutes. Susan seconded. The minutes passed unanimously. 

8:03 PM Discussion of FY24 Committees 
Arthur provided an update. All committee appointments have been made. 

31



8:07 PM Discussion of Annual Survey 
Arthur has shared a draft with the Council and is asking for edits administrative. The goal is to 
get this survey out in mid-October. 

8:09 PM Public forum and possible adoption of Charter Amendment 2023-1 to amend section 
301 of the Village of Martin’s Additions Charter to amend the definition of a “Qualified 
Voter.” 
Ron Bolt explained that the language of this Charter Amendment includes common legal terms 
based on case law but suggested that further explanation, in ordinary terms, can be in the 
election rules and policy. 
Susan moved to adopt Charter Amendment 2023-1. Arthur seconded. This passed unanimously. 

8:17 PM Discussion and Possible Introduction of Ordinance 2023-9-1. Ordinance to Amend 
the Ethics Ordinance to Expand the Definition of “Official” to Include Members of All 
Committees and Ad Hoc Committees Appointed by the Council. 
Andrew Kauders moved to introduce ordinance 2023-9-1. Susan seconded. This was introduced 
by a three to one vote, with Katie Howard opposed. 

8:24 PM Treasurer’s Report 
Treasurer Jeff Blander is out, so Arthur Alexander delivered the treasurer’s report. 

8:24PM Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents’ Comments 
Keith Allen commented that the weather might cancel soccer games and the like this weekend. 

Hiromi Maruyama commented about the 3419 Cummings construction project and the rear 
decks. 

Doug Grob also commented on the rear decks at 3419 Cummings and the interpretation of the 
building code and the intention of that code. 

Marty Langelan commented that the Council should consider closing this building code 
loophole that allows a two-story deck but not a one-story deck with a roof. 

Susan Kahn commented that maybe these building related issues would be something that new 
storm water committee could investigate. 

Katie Howard brought a question to the Council about if we could provide an ice cream truck 
for the first day of school or share an ice cream truck with Section 3. 

Susan moved to close the open meeting and to go into closed session. Andrew seconded. This 
was unanimous. 

32



Council Meeting Minutes – October 5, 2023 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL AND IN-PERSON 

Council Members Present: Andrew Kauders; Susan Fattig; Arthur Alexander; Katie Howard; Jeff 
Blander 

Other Attendees: Village Manager: Michael Silliman; Village Attorney: Ron Bolt 

7:30 PM Call to Order: Alexander 

Closed Session. 
While in open session, Susan moved and Andrew seconded to enter closed session pursuant to 
the Open Meetings Act, General Provisions Article, Section 3-305(b)(7) to obtain legal advice 
from counsel regarding interpretation of the Village building code and an enforcement matter. 
This was unanimous. 

No action was taken. 

Adjournment was unanimous. 

33



Monthly Outline of VMA Fiscal Year Admin Calendar 

July 
• New Council takes office – complete oaths and Conflict of

Interest Forms
• Council appoints officers
• Solicit resident volunteers for committees, tree

supervisor, and task forces
• July 4th Celebration

August 
• Continue to solicit resident volunteers
• Movie Night #1
• Summer Recess for Council (no formal open Council

meeting anticipated)
• Sign-up for VMA fall tree planting program

September 
• Start VMA Audit
• Movie Night #2 (Labor Day weekend)
• Annual Survey Draft
• Appoint Volunteers
• Host Volunteer Orientation Session

October 
• VMA Annual Audit completion (by Oct 31st)
• Annual Survey
• Halloween Party/Parade

November 

34



• Review VMA Audit Findings (Public Forum Session
during council meeting)

December 
• Election Plan Introduction
• Share Annual Survey Results
• Collect Donations for Waste Management Crew Members
• Winter Holidays Community Celebration

January 
• Annual Council Goal Setting/Strategic Planning Session
• Election Plan Adoption

February 
• Draft Budget for new fiscal year

March 
• Introduction of Budget Ordinance and Accompanying

Resolutions
• Community Brunch Event

April 
• Election Candidate Forum

May 
• Election Day and Sidewalk Celebration
• Announcement of Election Results
• Adoption of Budget Ordinance and Accompanying

Resolutions

35



June 
• Volunteer Celebration
• New Council Orientation

36



October 2023 VMA Treasurer Report Page 1 of 3 

Village of Martins Additions 
Financial Report for October 2023 

Jeffrey Blander Treasurer 
Thursday October 19th, 2023 

Sept 2023 
Actual 

Sept 2023 
Budgeted 

Under/Over 
Budgeted 

YTD 
Actual 

YTD 
Budgeted 

Under/Over 
Budgeted 

Annual 
Budgeted 

Total 
Income 

$   32,193 $ 80,533 ($ 48,340) $137,460 $241,600 ($104,140) $ 966,400.00  

Total 
Expenses 

$   66,669 $ 75,433 ($  8,764) $212,802  $226,300 ($ 13,498) $ 905,200.00  

Net 
Income 

($ 34,476)  $ 5,100 ($ 29,376) ($ 75,342) $15,300 ($ 60,042) $   61,200.00  

• Income includes revenue from permit fees, country revenue sharing, income tax,
property tax, and interest.

• Expenses include those from general government (printing, insurance, office lease,
telephones, etc.), salaries and benefits, professional fees (accounting, legal,
permitting, etc.), streets (lighting and maintenance), waste and recycling, other (tree
maintenance, community events, etc.)

• Does not include ARPA funds

Investment reserves (Walkability, streets, other) $1,500,000 
Emergency reserves $1,000,000 

Current assets less reserves shown above: $ 2,871,642 

In September, we transferred $110,000 from our interest-earning savings account at 
Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP) to the checking account at Truist 
Bank. 

In the first quarter of the fiscal year, there are no significant surprises. Legal fees are 
noted as higher than expected for this point in the year (Actual $34,123 versus Budget 
$13,740). However, given increased consultations specific to water management and 
permitting with the county and other stakeholders, not unexpected. As income and 
property tax revenues typically accrue in tranches during the year, it is not unexpected 
to have a shortfall of actual versus budgeted net income during Q1 of the fiscal year. 

There are two capital projects underway (Widening Quincy and the Brookville 
Sidewalk), however expenses have not been incurred or paid as of this month’s report. 

37



October 2023 VMA Treasurer Report Page 2 of 3 

Village of Martin's Additions 
Detailed Profit and Loss Report 

July - September, 2023 (Q1) 
Income Total 

   4000 Revenue 
      4010 Permit Fees  $            150.00 
      4020 Cable TV Franchise Fees  $         2,774.35 
      4040 County Revenue Sharing  $       54,285.00 
      4050 Highway Users Fees  $         7,383.19 
      4060 Income Tax  $         2,897.61 
      4090 Real Property Tax  $         3,388.84 
      4110 Interest  $       66,580.76 
   Total 4000 Revenue  $            137,459.75 
Total Income  $            137,459.75 
Expenses 
   5000 General Government 
      5010 Office Expenses  $         3,602.03 
      5030 Insurance  $         2,318.00 
      5040 Printing & Mailing  $            230.00 
      5050 Dues & Subscriptions/Conference  $         6,928.17 
      5060 Office Lease  $         7,419.99 
      5065 Telephone  $         1,029.30 
      5070 IT  $         3,108.97 
   Total 5000 General Government  $       24,636.46 
   5100 Salaries & Benefits 
      5110 Managerial & Office Salaries  $       36,211.39 
      5120 Payroll Taxes & Benefits  $         2,787.49 
      5130 Police salaries  $         7,800.00 
      5135 Police Payroll taxes  $            597.76 
   Total 5100 Salaries & Benefits  $       47,396.64 
   5200 Professional Fees 
      5210 Accounting & Auditing  $         1,221.75 
      5220 Building & Permitting  $       19,290.00 
      5230 Legal  $       34,123.40 
      5244 Traffic Engineering  $         1,442.00 
   Total 5200 Professional Fees  $       56,077.15 
   5300 Streets 
      5305 Streets - General 
         5310 Street Lighting - PEPCO  $         1,171.72 
         5324 Street Maintenance - Other  $         6,457.40 
      Total 5305 Streets - General  $         7,629.12 
   Total 5300 Streets  $         7,629.12 
   5400 Waste & Recycling 
      5410 Waste Collection & Recycling  $       36,771.58 
      5425 Recycling Bins  $            165.93 
   Total 5400 Waste & Recycling  $       36,937.51 
   5500 Other 
      5510 Tree Maintenance  $       16,262.25 
      5518 Right-of-Way Landscaping  $         3,417.70 
      5520 Community Events  $       20,445.48 
   Total 5500 Other  $       40,125.43 
Total Expenses  $            212,802.31 
Net Operating Income  $            (75,342.56) 
Net Income  $            (75,342.56) 

38



October 2023 VMA Treasurer Report Page 3 of 3 

High level Recap of Monthly Reports and Annual Audit Obligations: 

• The Maryland Code, Local Gov't Art., Sec. 16-306 requires the Village to file annual audits
with the Department of Legislative Services.

• Per the VMA Charter, Sec. 403(c) "... The Treasurer shall keep accurate records of all
financial transactions involving funds or assets belonging to Martin's Additions."

• Per Sec. 704, "The financial books and accounts of Martin's Additions shall be audited
annually in a manner determined by the Council but not contrary to applicable State law."

• The monthly reports are not required, and no formal action is required on a monthly
basis.  The monthly report is traditionally "accepted" for informational purposes.

• The monthly presentation is generally done as part of the fiduciary duty to oversee the
Village's operations.

• This allows the Council to continuously gauge the financial position of the Village, which
may lead to other actions and which guides day-to-day decisions.

Process for Monthly reconciling VMA accounts and Production of the Monthly 
Treasurer’s Report 
• The first week of every month, VMA staff prepares documents to send our Accountant

including the MLGIP statement, Truist statement, payroll reports, revenue explanations and
documentation, and other expenses documentation.

• The accountant reconciles VMA accounts and “closes the books” for the month by reviewing
information inputted into QuickBooks by VMA Staff to verify that all income and expenses
are documented correctly using the appropriate account codes.

• Once the books are “closed” by the VMA accountant, three reports are generated by the
VMA Office staff to help produce the VMA Treasurer Report included into the meeting
packet.  The three reports generated from QuickBooks each month include: a) Balance Sheet
(this fiscal year to last month), b) General Ledger (this fiscal year to last month), c) Budget
vs. Actual (this fiscal year to last month)

Near-term follow-up activities 
• On-going training, mentorship, and transfer of duties
• Work with VMA Staff, auditors, and accountants to complete annual audit (due by Oct. 31st

2023).
• Follow-up with the Village auditor and accountant on recommendations to formatting and

changes, particularly any suggestions on the format of the monthly reports and/or how to
make the annual audits more efficient.

• On-going outreach and review different monthly reports from nearby municipalities.
Compare formats and types of analysis, thresholds, or financial “health” indicators/ratios
used. For example: level of details specific to budget vs. actual and balance sheet.

• Consider current contractor scope of work and ways to strengthen independent review of
monthly treasurer report

39


	Council Agenda 10-18-23
	1. Letter to Ron Bolt requesting lift of stop work order at 3417   3419 Cummings La (00572122xD8665)
	SCR0001
	SCR0002
	SCR0003
	Manager's Report
	2023-24 Leaf, Street and Storm Drain
	Compost Crew_Village of Martin's Additions_Proposal (1)
	Veteran Compost
	MC-VMA-status-memo-10-16-23
	September 21- Meeting Minutes
	October 5 - Meeting Minutes
	Monthly Outline of VMA Fiscal Year Calendar
	VMA Treasurers Report - FINAL - 10-18-2023



